City of Geneva, Illinois

Local Historic District & Landmarks
Property Inventory Survey

GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION:

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

217 South Third Street

PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (PIN):

12-03-456-005

HISTORIC NAME: Wright House

COMMON NAME:

DATE OF CONSTRUCTION: 1851-1852

SIGNIFICANT ALTERATION DATES:

ARCHITECT:

BUILDER:

WILSON BROTHERS: [ AUGUST [ OSCAR [ BOTH
ARCHITECTURAL DATA:

ARCHITECTURAL STYLE: Greek Revival

OVERALL PLAN SHAPE: Complex

LOCAL SIGNIFICANCE RATING:

NUMBER OF STORIES: 2

[ ] significant

FOUNDATION MATERIAL: Parged

E Contributing

PRIMARY WALL MATERIAL(S): Stucco

|:| Non-Contributing — Built After 1987

|:| Non-Contributing — Reversible Alterations

FRONT PORCH: Covered Entry

|:| Non-Contributing — Irreversible Alterations

VISIBLE SIDE PORCH: Covered Entry

HISTORIC DISTRICT LOCATION:

ENTRY DOOR(S): Wood, Not Original/Historic

IE Central Geneva NRHD

WINDOW MATERIAL: Wood

|:| North Geneva NRHD

WINDOW STYLE: Fixed Picture; Bay; Double Hung; 6/1, 8/1

|E| Local Geneva HD

PRIMARY ROOF FORM: Side Gabled

|:| Not in HD / Individual Historic Landmark

PRIMARY ROOF MATERIAL: Asphalt Shingles

NR DISTRICT SIGNIFICANCE RATING:

VISIBLE CHIMNEY: No

|E| Contributing

|:| Non-Contributing

CHIMNEY MATERIAL: N/A

|:| Not Applicable / Not in NR District

OTHER SIGNIFICANT ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES:

HPC ACTION:

|:| Demolition Approved:

Other HPC Action: 4 27 98 Bay Window; 05.19.09
New roof at Bsmt Entry;
6.22.18 Shingles




City of Geneva, lllinois

Local Historic District & Landmarks
Property Inventory Survey

ADDITIONAL PROPERTY INFORMATION:

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

217 South Third Street

BRIEF HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION:

According to court records and Geneva Historical Museum (GHM)
records, the house at 217 South Third Street was built in 1851-1852
using lumber provided by Allen P. Hubbard and Lyman German.
Originally, the house featured cedar siding, but it is presumed that
stucco was added sometime between 1900 and 1930.

The Wright House, located at 221 South Third Street, was likely built
around 1853, possibly for Paul R. Wright, according to the 1857 city
directory. It may have also been the early home of Luther and
Elizabeth Dearborn, listed in the 1857 directory as residing on
Second Street at the corner of Franklin. Records show that Nelson
Warner purchased lots for $250 in 1851, followed by Henry Stephens
in 1852 for $600, Luther Dearborn in 1853 for $1,000, and Paul R.
Wright in 1856 for $2,500.The house is constructed with limestone
and stucco. GHM records suggest that the stucco may be original,
though unclear. The property has undergone several additions and
reconstructions over time.

SOURCES:

GHPC Case Studies; GHM Archives; 2016 Central North Geneva NRHP Update; 1869
Bird's Eye View of Geneva; Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps; Kane County Land
Records; Geneva, lllinois: A History of Its Times and Places; Geneva, lllinois: 150
Reminders of 150 Years

CONTRIBUTING ACCESSORY STRUCTURES:

AS1 GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

AS2 GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

CONTRIBUTING LANDSCAPE FEATURES:

GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

1999
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The Wright House, located at 221 South Third Street, was likely built around 1853, possibly for Paul R. Wright, according to the 1857 city directory. It may have also been the early home of Luther and Elizabeth Dearborn, listed in the 1857 directory as residing on Second Street at the corner of Franklin. Records show that Nelson Warner purchased lots for $250 in 1851, followed by Henry Stephens in 1852 for $600, Luther Dearborn in 1853 for $1,000, and Paul R. Wright in 1856 for $2,500.The house is constructed with limestone and stucco. GHM records suggest that the stucco may be original, though unclear. The property has undergone several additions and reconstructions over time. 

Over time, these properties in combination became known as "The Oaks," owned by Theodore D. Williams. The property consisted of several lots, two houses, and a barn. In 1911, The Oaks was advertised for rent. It featured city water and heating gas but was described as "otherwise not modern" (Geneva Republican, 6 September 1911).

In 1915, A. G. Johnsson, a local restaurant owner, completed the purchase of the Theodore D. Williams property. Johnsson planned to remodel the residence facing Third Street and the cottage in the back lane while demolishing the barn. He announced his intention to build a new cottage or bungalow in the lane, which would be made more attractive with cement walks and curbing. This lane was later named Johnsson's Lane. Despite these changes, Johnsson stated he had no plans to move his restaurant from State Street and would rent the apartments and cottages on the property (Geneva Republican, 27 February 1915).

Dr. Theodore D. Williams, the former owner of "The Oaks," passed away on February 27, 1914, following a stroke. He had lived in Geneva since 1887, after moving from Chicago. His funeral was held at his South Third Street home. The property had been his residence until 1911 (Geneva Republican, 28 February 1914; 28 October 1911).

By 1915, the Johnsson's Lane bungalow was built (215 S Third), and the property was further remodeled. The apartments in the main building were leased to W. A. Potter and family on the first floor, and Miss Carrie Weatherly took the upper rooms. The cottage in the back lane was rented to Alexander J. Linck (Geneva Republican, 18 August 1915). The property continued functioning as apartments by 1917, with the first and second floors used for rental purposes (Geneva Republican, 23 June 1917). Dr. Weatherly was listed as renting rooms at The Oaks by November 1915 (Geneva Republican, 6 November 1915). In May 1917, Arthur L. Stimple, the retiring City Clerk, began establishing a real estate office at The Oaks, likely in the south addition (Geneva Republican, 2 May 1917).

The complex continued to serve as rental property, much of it for residential use, for some time. In 1942, Victor Geisler leased the lower apartment of 217 from G. W. Price of St Charles. By 1952, Esther hats was advertising at the address. Today, its primary use is commercial, and it has had several stores cycle through the space.
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